2 OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for
Infrastructure & Development Strategy

Thursday, 26 September 2024 at 1.15 pm
Room 3 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND

If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link.
However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting.

ltems for Decision

The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached. Decisions taken
will become effective at the end of the working day on 3 October 2024 unless called in by
that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee.

Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council.

Theseproceedingsareopento the public

D “\} ‘ = —
Martin Reeves
Chief Executive
September 2024

Committee Officer: committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Note: Date of next meeting: 10 October 2024

If you have any specialrequirements (such as a large printversion of
thesepapersor specialaccessfacilities) please contactthe officer
named onthe frontpage, but please giveas much notice as possible
beforethe meeting.



https://oxon.cc/DDCMIDS26092024

Page 2

Items for Decision

1. Declarations of Interest
See guidance below.

2. Questions from County Councillors

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet
Member's delegated powers.

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting)
and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a
written response.

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further
debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting,
together with any written response which is available at that time.

3. Petitions and Public Address

Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in
person or ‘virtually through an online connection.

Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the
meeting. Requests to speak should be sent
to committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk .

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A
written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before
the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2)
5. TramwayAccessibility Inprovements - Contracts and

Agreements (Pages 3 - 10)

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and Development Strategy
Forward Plan Ref: 2024/096
Contact: Cris Butler, Project Manager (Cris.Butler@oxordshire.gov.uk)

Report by Corporate Director for Environment and Place


mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Cris.Butler@oxordshire.gov.uk

Page 3

The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to

a) Delegate authority to the Director of Environment & Highways in
consultation with the Head of Legal Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer,
to approvethe entering into a NEC 4 Option C Engineering and Construction
Contract for the Tramway Road Accessibility Improvements Project with
Milestone Infrastructure for the construction works pursuant to the Pagabo
Civil and Infrastructure Framework (Lot 2).



Page 2

Councillors declaringinterests

General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item
on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to
you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council's area; licenses for land in the
Council's area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be
recorded in each councillor's Register of Interests which is publicly available on the
Council’s website.

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member
her or himself but also those member’'s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with
as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a
meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature
as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after
having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the
item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code
of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself and
that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be
questioned’.

Members Code — Other registrable interests

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or
wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an interest.
You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from
the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness;
anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or
negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing.
Other registrable interests include:

a) Any unpaid directorships



Page 3

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or
management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority.

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable
purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
member or in a position of general control or management.

Members Code — Non-registrable interests

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or
wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial
interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing,
a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or
wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the
interest.

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your
interest the following test should be applied:
Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:
a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b) areasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it
would affect your view of the wider public interest.

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at
the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

DELEGATEDDECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBERFOR INFRASTRUCTURE

30

31

32

33

34

& DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 15 August 2024 commencing at 11.00
am and finishing at 11.17 am

Present:
Voting Members: Councillor Judy Roberts —in the Chair
Officers: Jack Ahier (Democratic Services Officer), Jack

Nicholson (Democratic  Services Officer), Gareth
Slocombe (Senior Project Manager)

The Cabinet Member considered the matters, reports and recommendations
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting [, together with a schedule of
addenda tabled at the meeting/the following additional documents:] and agreed as
set out below. Copies of the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and
schedule/additional documents] are attached to the signed Minutes.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda No. 1)

There were none.

QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS
(Agenda No. 2)

There were none.

PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS
(Agenda No. 3)

There were none.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda No. 4)

The Chair signed and approved the minutes of the meetings held on 23 May 2024,
20 June 2024 and 18 July 2024 as a correct record.

ACCESS TO WITNEY: SHORES GREEN JUNCTION APPROVAL OF
CONTRACT AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION
(Agenda No. 5)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting and invited officers to provide some
background information to the report.

Page 1



Following a question from the Chair regarding signage, officers stated that the
parameters were part of a wider signage strategy.

Officers noted that the 2 stages were to speed up delivery and manage costs.

Following a question from the Chair, officers confirmed biodiversity gains from the
project and referenced ongoing discussions with land owners to make further
improvements.

The Chair noted that this scheme was one of a series of schemes to improve traffic
flow within the A40 corridor.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendation in the report.
RESOLVED to:

a) Delegate authority to the Director of Environment and Highways, to approve
the entering into a Works contract with Milestone Infrastructure for the value of
£12.703m (excl. VAT) pursuant to the Pagabo Civil and Infrastructure
Framework (Lot 2), and to approve entering into an Enabling Works contract
with Milestone Infrastructure via their existing Highways Partnership Contract
(HPC) - Terms and Services Contract, for the value of £1.900m, together
representing the full construction of the Access to Witney Scheme.

in the Chair

Page 2



Agenda Item 5

Divisions Affected — Banbury Grimsbury & Castle

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBERFOR
INFRASTRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

26 SEPTEMBER 2024
Banbury — Tramway Road Accessibility Inprovements

Reportby Director of Environmentand Highways

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to

a) Delegate authority to the Director of Environment & Highways in
consultation with the Head of Legal Services and Deputy Monitoring
Officer, to approve the entering into a NEC 4 Option C Engineering and
Construction Contract for the Tramway Road Accessibility Improvements
Project with Milestone Infrastructure for the construction works pursuant
to the Pagabo Civil and Infrastructure Framework (Lot 2).

Executive Summary

1. The Tramway Road Accessibility Improvements encompasses the following
benefits:

a) Improve access and connectivity to Banbury Station, and to encourage the
use of public transport, walking and cycling by opening a formal secondary
access along Tramway Road to the station for all transport modes.

b) Improve bus journey times and reliability to Banbury Station.

c) Improve bus interchange for passengers at the station and provide a safer and
more attractive environment for pedestrians and cyclists

d) Reduce traffic congestion for customers accessing the car park to the north of
the station and improve the resilience of the road network around the station.

2. Planning permission was granted on 27 October 2022. As the detailed design
was developed and feedback from key stakeholders such as Network Rail and
Chiltern Railway were considered, it was necessary for the existing planning
application to be amended through a Section 73 application. S73 has been
submitted and currently awaiting a decision.

Page 3



3.

In parallel, the council is still seeking to acquire all of the land interests and
necessary statutory approvals (from the relevant rail authorities) that it requires
for delivery of the Scheme through private negotiation wherever possible.

Background

4.

Oxfordshire County Council “OCC”, entered into an “OWN Contract’” on 16
March 2023 using the “Access Agreement” between Peterborough City Council,
Oxfordshire County Council and Milestone Infrastructure Limited for the delivery
of detailed design services for the Tramway Road Accessibility Improvement
project. The detailed design is due to complete by the end of September 2024.
A plan of the scheme being delivered can be found in Annex A.

The approved procurement strategy for construction of this project was to
procure using the Pagabo AVP-QEF-1001 Civil and Infrastructure framework
via a direct award using the NEC4 ECC Option C Target Cost contract. The
procurement strategy was approved by the council’s senior officers in
December 2023. The option of a Direct Award process via a framework
demonstrated best value for money whilst reducing commissioning timeframes
and resource/overhead costs.

Construction is anticipated to commence in October 2024. In order to meet the
funding deadlines, this report is to request that delegated authority is given to
the Director of Environment and Highways to enter into the construction contract
with Milestone Infrastructure in a timely manner based on Council policy,
regulations and professional judgement.

An Advance Works Package (AWP) has been commissioned with Milestone
Infrastructure Ltd (MIL) via the Highways Partnership Contract in order to
expedite the programme and enabling works. This package involves activities
such as site set up, traffic management, preparatory training, material ordering
and is to the value of £283k.

The contractor's estimated cost to complete construction is £7.516m. The
formal submission of the contractor's target price for construction and the
construction programme has been received but still to be agreed.

OCC have signed up to relevant agreements required with Network railto cover:

Funding of Network Rail staff to provide asset protection services

Network Rail placing staff on site

Agreeing the methodology for undertaking the works

Providing clear definitions of roles and responsibilities including

authorisations required to undertake the works

e Superintending and monitoring compliance with the agreed method
statements; and Network Rail Property Guidance for Prospective
Development Partners

e Intervening if the works could have an impact on the safe operation of
the network.

Page 4



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Where the sale, lease or development of land affects a station, its facilities or
the rights enjoyed by it, the regulated position in relation to that station needs to
be considered. For this project, the station is owned by Network Rail but is
leased to and directly operated by Chiltern Railway, which is known in regulatory
terms as the Station Facility Owner (SFO). Additional train operating companies
(“beneficiaries”) can be granted Station Access Agreements (SAA), which
permit them to enjoy access to the station facilities and operate train services
serving the station.

The SAAs contain a range of obligations and incorporate Station Access
Conditions (SAC), which are a set of regulatory access rules including the
Station Change procedure. This is a regulatory process, which is required for
approval of physical changes to the station or contractual changes to the SAC
and may be required to facilitate the development. Where the change proposal
requires modification of the access conditions applicable to the station, approval
by the Office of Road and Rail (ORR) is needed. The ORR has given general
limited approvals in advance for certain types of changes. If the general
approvals do not apply, a specific approval will be needed. This is required
before any works commence on site.

The station change procedure for this project is currently in the consultation
phase which started on 8 August 2024 and will be completed on 17 September
2024 (and approved prior to construction commencing).

As part of the land acquisition process some parcels of unregistered land have
been identified. The Council's Legal Team are progressing with the legal
presumption of ad medium filum (meaning ‘up to the middle line’ in Latin) on
these land parcels. This presumption states that the adjacent landowner to a
highway route owns the land up to the middle of that route. If highway rights
exist over the surface, the landowner is responsible for the subsoil and the
highway authority is responsible for the surface. Neighbouring landowners have
been contacted and no representations have been received to date.

A Stopping Up Order (SUO) process has been completed for a small section of
land in Tramway Road in order to facilitate the new highway layout. This process
was completed by the office of the Secretary of State for Transport under section
247 of the Town and Country Planning Act and the order came into force on 8
August 2024. A plan showing the area to be stopped up is in Annex B.

Key Issues

15.

It is essential that this decision is made urgently to ensure that the construction
programme is not adversely affected. The key driver for using the Pagabo Civil
and Infrastructure Framework (Main Works) with Milestone Infrastructure is to
expedite the construction process. Including the AWP (referenced in paragraph
8 of this report) already commissioned with Milestone Ltd, this route will produce
the shortest time to commence construction and ensure that the allocated
Housing Growth Dealfunding is spent by the end of March 2025, whilst adhering
to the latest programme/timescales.

Page 5



Financial Implications

16.

17.

As identified previously, this report seeks to ensure that authority is in place for
entering into the construction contract with Milestone Infrastructure.

There are no budgetary implications on the basis that the total funding amount
of £15.942m, to cover the estimated final cost (EFC), has been agreed by
Informal Cabinet. Currently awaiting approval from Cabinet, which is expected
on 17 September 2024.

Comments checked by:
Rob Finlayson, Strategic Finance Business Partner (Environment and
Highways; Economy & Place), rob.finlayson@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Legal Implications

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

When procuring goods, services or works, the procurement must be conducted
in accordance with the Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules and, where
applicable, the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCRs).

The total value of the proposed contract for the Works is above the PCR’s
threshold of £5,372,609 (inc. VAT).

The Pagabo Civil and Infrastructure Framework (Lot 2) Agreement was entered
into in May 2022 following a public procurement exercise under the PCRs and
expires in May 2026. The proposed direct award contract under the Pagabo
Civil and Infrastructure Framework (Lot 2) between Milestone Infrastructure
Limited and the Council is a NEC4 Engineering Construction Contract — Option
C (Target Price).

The Council will be delivering the construction of the Tramway Road

Accessibility Improvements Project in its capacity as the highway authority for
Oxfordshire under the Highways Act 1980.

The “OWN Contract” mentioned in paragraph 5 and the “AWP” mentioned in
paragraph 8 of this document were entered by Delegated Authority under the
Constitution Part 7.1 para 4.2 (a) (vii) Negotiation of agreements or
arrangements with others for the provision of services.

Comments checked by: Jayne Pringle - Head of Law & LBP Contracts &
Conveyancing
Jayne.Pringle @oxfordshire.gov.uk

Page 6


mailto:Jayne.Pringle@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Staff Implications

23.  There are no staff implications.

Risk Management

24.  If the Council does not enter into a contract with Milestone Infrastructure for the
construction of the scheme as soon as practicably possible, this could put
pressure on the County Council’s ability to spend the Housing Growth Deal
funding allocated by the end of March 2025. This could result in reputational
damage if the Council does not enter the contract in a timely manner.

25. The Council's Legal team have confirmed that the ad medium filum presumption
made by the council is low risk as all neighbouring landowners have been
contacted about the unregistered land parcels.

26. The 34% contingency referred to in paragraph 18 is considered a reasonable
risk allowance with the number of risks that the council are potentially exposed
to on this project. Namely contaminated land, multiple external stakeholders in
a built-up environment, close working to a public transport hub and close
working to railway company owned assets.

Paul Fermer
Director of Environment and Highways

Annex:

A - Scheme Plan

B — Stopping Up Order Plan
Background papers: None
Contact Officer: Cris Butler

Project Manager
cris.butler@oxfordshire.gov.uk

September 2024

Page 7


mailto:cris.butler@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Page 8



ANNEX A — Scheme Plan

A S
/\

~
o Mot ST SR OF e e
a4 o ase T s
et & Tt
T 0 ATy

T MorTO0ud s $09 3) £
Bartury Town Cares \
V5m wide g% um mw

yese accmss 1 1 cyde

Tounw
o ot wtn

S bowrie, AT Or Al Wy Of TN0 AN 5 T30S et ) MYy e

[

| [E=
.mm»q,a.ml’l‘:-c.-m«n- rccam
| [Fabemrs Roww toms

\

P |

Ugnang colamn
parier 00 1o ved
(Wow o Sd sotars and sccet
rowrcton barier 1 egwome e
o870 tve suion #or T carpars

Sy

o
1 Dondt scue fom ha dawng

2 e vty o deorons price 1 Coniwacton
3 m

A TINS G 15 1o e 1w ) COTNCHOA w81 rebe
Socuments and.

gt
5 Ancion yetity X Ssmne of 2 0m s based on s 77 7
AMIST Tha ¥ SEwve mresion b e Sopeng SN

Sty Tatie 7 1 o MEB1 for 2mph rond
Pedetton

7
§
g
:
!

dawes »
St Duasnca (S50) 403 ia 2 bawd 00 T el
5 gt n Tatke 71 61N 1 Bor 20mph

s 73 whch maims 2 5o
3
B e e

PRV 3 (SYCH 8 B 10 parvESed vehiCies 01Ty K%
03 U 10 N 305083 W AT O 8 Ve T a0 ot
YU o0 o pas.

o, Tham e, sgaed vt wnage. demchone wonae

Rat
0

st 10N 5% Smthed 5% oged of T o
e of abays. T i based 0n T MU bt 0ot

Sutony’,
11 Paking bays pafieed wih & ket mean He Hiwing
8-

N oot
. o
L ]
Tt Puvng
______ Socin Veadly

Crowsng Vestaty (1 "X datrve)

Crossng Viststy (1.0m "X dstwce)

005 14062004 | WA By s Wa[CA WG]
Moo B Ao

04 | 30,04 200¢ | Ukt gowt MOWEL cormrwaris & | WG | G [ W3
ko ackvent e 05

0000|0403 2000 | FEAZ Uhadon [

(00207 11 2003 | e oo - o R

‘i & Segpante!

[0 | 19,0900 | et Dt Do lsess EEED

- G G [ |

=

S

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

'(.Seneral Arrangement
Tramway Rd Improvements

RIE T [ [
o et
nmn 002 L)

g [ T e’ o !

pom oo
“ | 2omsomL oz ORCHOS | O .

T PN YV R —p———yy T —r—



ANNEX B

HIGHWAY AT BANBURY, IN THE COUNTY OF OXFORDSHIRE

E-Ad5151 |
M 240251

J-“ Key Scale 11250 @A4 Mational Transport Casework Team Signed by Authaority of the
J Secrelary of Stale
Department for Transpsor

Highwey ta ba
stopped up

O SHOTV2029 i

Plan No: NATTRAN/SE/S24T/5T38
. e }'.

Signature...

TiM BRIMELOWY

an Official in tha

Magonal Transport Casework Team
Department for Trarspon

Page 10



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Tramway Accessibility Improvements - Contracts and Agreements

